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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Salem, Arkansas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Salem, Arkansas,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Salem, Arkansas’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Salem, Arkansas, as of December 31, 2022,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the City of Salem, Arkansas and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Salem, Arkansas’
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City of Salem, Arkansas’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, required pension schedules and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-
15 and 59-68 as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Salem, Arkansas's basic financial statements. The accompanying water and sewer
schedules on pages 69-72 as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the water and sewer supplementary information as listed in
the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 15,
2024, on our consideration of the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control over financial reporting and

Certified Public Accountants

Batesville, Arkansas
January 15, 2024
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Cit r CITY OF SALEM

MAayor DanieEL D. BuscH

éa C m P.O. Box 619 @ 120 North Main @ Salem, Arkansas 72576
Phone: (870) 895-3478 ® Fax: (870) 895-4540

CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis of the City of Salem'’s financial performance provides an overview of
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. Readers should
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the City’s financial statements which begin on
page 16.

Financial Highlights

o As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, total assets of the City exceeded total liabilities by $3,992,848 and
$3,687,323, respectively. Of this amount, $865,094 and $608,295, respectively, is considered
unrestricted. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unrestricted (deficit) net position of the City’s
governmental activities are $196,802 and $254,421, respectively, and may be used to meet the
government's on-going obligations. The unrestricted net position of the City’s business-type activities are
$430,599 and $353,874, respectively, and may be used to meet the on-going obligations of the City’s
business-type activities.

e The City’s total net position increased by $305,525 and $366,322 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. Net
position of the governmental activities increased by $214,534 and $266,078 in 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Net position of the business-type activities increased by $90,991 and $100,244 in 2022 and
2021, respectively.

e As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $1,606,116 and $1,355,780, respectively. The combined governmental fund balances
increased by $250,336 and $266,303 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. At December 31, 2022 and 2021,
fund balance of $359,494 and $831,702, respectively, is considered unrestricted.

e The general fund reported fund balances of $973,153 and $803,222 at the end of 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $359,494 or 58% of total general fund
expenditures in 2022 and $283,831 or 51% of total general fund expenditures in 2021. There was a
$169,931 and $181,316 increase in the total fund balance for the general fund for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

e The City’s total debt at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $298,608 and $328,743, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Salem’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves that will enhance the
reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Salem.



Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide
short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of
resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, recreation and
culture, streets and highways, and industrial development. The business-type activities of the City include the
airport, water and sewer, and softball and baseball.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 18 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources which have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government'’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund and street fund.

The City adopts an annual budget for its general fund and street fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 22 of this report.



Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its water and sewer, airport, and softball and baseball.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 27 of this report.
Notes to Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the

government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to financial statements can be found on pages 28
through 58 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City’s Firemen’s Pension, City's APERS Plan, and City’s
LOPF! Plan and the general fund and major special revenue fund budget. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The required supplementary information can be found on pages 59 through 68 of this report.

The water and sewer fund schedules are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information.

The schedules can be found on pages 69 through 72 of this report.



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net Position
December 31, 2022

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Current assets $ 953,242 $ 1,127,864 $ 2,081,106
Restricted assets 603,592 518,309 1,121,901
Capital assets 1,188,831 1,175,241 2,364,072
Deferred outflows of resources 291,889 47,500 339,389
Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources 3,037,554 2,868,914 5,906,468
Other liabilities (48,200) 643,638 595,438
Long-term liabilities 842,079 387,102 1,229,181
Deferred inflows of resources 82,813 6,188 89,001
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources 876,692 1,036,928 1,913,620
Net investment in capital assets 1,182,386 883,078 2,065,464
Restricted 1,175,278 518,309 1,693,587
Unrestricted (196,802) 430,599 233,797
Total net position $ 2,160,862 $ 1,831,986 $ 3,992,848




Net Position
December 31, 2021
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Current assets 3 763,469 3 663,269 1,426,738
Restricted assets 507,838 482,908 990,746
Capital assets 1,202,883 1,219,863 2,422,746
Deferred outflows of resources 113,203 25,701 138,904

Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources 2,587,393 2,391,741 4,979,134
Other liabilities (77,828) 256,339 178,511
Long-term liabilities 422,447 326,860 749,307
Deferred inflows of resources 296,446 67,547 363,993

Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources 641,065 650,746 1,291,811
Net investment in capital assets 1,189,790 904,213 2,094,003
Restricted 502,117 482,908 985,025
Unrestricted 254,421 353,874 608,295
Total net position $ 1,946,328 $ 1,740,995 3,687,323

Net assets may serve, over time, as an indicator of a government's financial position. The City’s assets
exceeded liabilities by $3,992,848 and $3,687,323 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
largest portion of the City’s net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, improvements
other than buildings, machinery and equipment) less any debt to acquire the asset. Even though these assets
are reported net of related debt, the liability to repay the debt must be provided from other sources since the
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate debt.

Net position is also subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. In 2022 and 2021, the City has
$1,693,587 and $985,025, respectively, of restricted net position which are limited by state or municipal laws
or grant or contractual agreements as to the use of these funds. Unrestricted net position (deficit) which may
be used to meet ongoing obligations of the City totaled $233,797 and $608,295 in 2022 and 2021,
respectively.



Schedules of changes in net position for December 31, 2022 and 2021 follow:

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
County fire tax
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental - state
Act 833 income
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Insurance proceeds
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Recreation and culture
Streets and highways
Industrial development
interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer
Airport
Softball and baseball
Total expenses

Increase in net position before transfers
Transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Changes in Net Position
December 31, 2022

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

3 16,498 $ 709,361 $ 725,859
87,900 - 87,900
103,126 - 103,126
498,270 - 498,270
57,885 - 57,885
81,116 81,116
148,655 - 148,655
13,607 - 13,607
2,802 5,815 8,617
2,175 - 2,175
296,257 37,154 333,411
20,568 - 20,568
1,328,859 752,330 2,081,189
279,879 - 279,879
475,413 - 475,413
62,268 - 62,268
278,571 - 278,571
15,600 - 15,600
144 - 144
- 605,232 605,232
- 35,541 35,541
- 23,016 23,016
1,111,875 663,789 1,775,664
216,984 88,541 305,525

(2,450) 2,450 -
214,534 90,991 305,525
1,946,328 1,740,995 3,687,323
$ 2,160,862 $ 1,831,986 $ 3,992,848




Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
County fire tax
Franchise fees

Intergovernmental - state

Act 833 income
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Recreation and culture
Streets and highways
Industrial development

Interest on long-term debt

Water and sewer

Airport

Softball and baseball
Total expenses
Increase in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Changes in Net Position
December 31, 2021

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 35,262 $ 671,001 $ 706,263
194,872 - 194,872
79,827 = 79,827
444,765 = 444,765
49,184 y 49,184
71,345 # 71,345
176,004 - 176,004
12,486 - 12,486
1,591 1,904 3,495
1,157 - 1,157
1,066,493 672,905 1,739,398
114,611 - 114,611
368,131 = 368,131
57,096 - 57,096
244,465 - 244 465
15,600 - 15,600
512 - 512
- 526,005 526,005
- 31,923 31,923
- 14,733 14,733
800,415 572,661 1,373,076
266,078 100,244 366,322
1,680,250 1,640,751 3,321,001
$ 1,946,328 $ 1,740,995 $ 3,687,323
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased net position by $214,534 and $266,078 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. A
chart of revenues by source for governmental activities follows.

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

December 31, 2022

m Charges for Services 1%

® Operating Grants & Contr 7%
® Property Taxes 8%

@ Sales Tax 37%

M County Fire Tax 4%

m Franchise Fees 6%

¥ Intergovernmental-State 11%

= ACT 833 Income 1%

Investment Earnings <1%

W Other 24%

December 31, 2021

B Charges for Services 3%

B Operating Grants & Contr 18%
m Property Taxes 7%

= Sales Tax 42%

i County Fire Tax 5%

# Franchise Fees 7%

u Intergovernmental-State 17%

ACT 833 Income 1%

& Investment Eamings <1%

Other <1%

As graphically portrayed above, the City is heavily reliant on sales and property taxes to support
governmental operations. Sales and property taxes provided 45% and 49% of the City's total governmental
revenues in fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities increased net position by $90,991 and $100,244 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. A
chart of revenues by source for business-type activities is presented below:

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities

December 31, 2022

® Charges for Services 94%

® Investment Earnings 1%

» Other 5%

December 31, 2021

® Charges for Services 99%

® Investment Earnings <1%
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s near term financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1,606,116 and $1,335,780, respectively. Of this total amount $359,494 and $831,702, respectively,
constitutes unrestricted fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The
remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of 2022 and 2021, total fund balance of the
general fund was $973,153 and $803,222, respectively. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare total fund balance to total fund expenditures. In 2022 and 2021, total fund balance
represents 123% and 104%, respectively, of total general fund expenditures. The total general fund balance
increased by $169,931 and $181,316 during 2022 and 2021, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the special revenue fund had a total fund balance of $632,963 and
$552,558, respectively. The net increase in fund balance in 2022 and 2021 for this fund was $80,405 and
$84,987, respectively.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Net position at the end of 2022 amounted to $1,583,114, $242,950 and $5,922 for water and sewer, airport,
and softball and baseball, respectively. Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer, airport, and softball
and baseball were $426,174, $(1,497) and $5,922 respectively.

Net position at the end of 2021 amounted to $1,474,448, $266,106, and $441 for water and sewer, airport,
and softball and baseball, respectively. Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer, airport, and softball
and baseball were $349,790, $3,643, and $441 respectively.

General Fund Budget Highlights

Actual revenues and transfers-in exceeded budgetary estimates by $301,331 and actual expenditures and
transfers-out were more than budgetary estimates by $143,975 resulting in an increase in existing fund
balance of $169,931 as compared to the budgeted increase of $12,575.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for governmental and business-type
activities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounts to $2,364,072 and $2,422,746, respectively.

This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, systems, improvements, machinery and equipment,
park facilities, streets and highways, and water and sewer systems. The total additions for 2022 and 2021
was $102,856 and $60,975, respectively.

13-



Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
December 31, 2022
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Land and construction in progress $ 15,000 140,824 $ 155,824
Buildings, systems and improvements 2,420,410 3,187,134 5,607,544
Equipment 722,321 287,964 1,010,285
Infrastructure 1,233,000 - 1,233,000
Accumulated depreciation (3,201,900) (2,440,681) (5,642,581)

Total $ 1,188,831 $ 1,175,241 $ 2,364,072

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
December 31, 2021
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Land and construction in progress $ 15,000 $ 140,824 $ 155,824
Buildings, systems and improvements 2,400,376 3,160,983 5,661,359
Equipment 639,499 287,964 927,463
Infrastructure 1,233,000 - 1,233,000
Accumulated depreciation (3,084,992) (2,369,908) (5,454,900)

Total $ 1,202,883 $ 1,219,863 $ 2,422,746

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 37 through 39 of this
report.

-14-



Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the City had $298,608 and $328,743, respectively, of long-term debt
outstanding.

Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2022

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Note payable $ 6,445 $ 6,445 $ 12,890
Revenue bonds payable * 285,718 285,718
Total $ 6,445 $ 292,163 $ 298,608

Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2021

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Note payable $ 13,093 $ 7,612 $ 20,605
Revenue bonds payable = 308,138 308,138
Total $ 13,093 $ 315,650 $ 328,743

Total long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2022 and 2021, (decreased) by ($30,135) and $(34,994),
respectively. The City issued no new debt during the fiscal years ending December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 39 through 42 of
this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2022 budget.
The City considered its two primary revenue sources: sales tax and property tax. The Mayor and City Council
decided that it was important to: 1) put the highest premium on safety for the people of Salem and City
employees, and 2) adopt a budget designed to promote long-term fiscal stability by creating additional budget
reserves. In order to meet the objectives of the 2022 budget, the City recognized the need to continue its
pattern of cost containment. The total 2023 general fund budget is $705,137.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show accountability for the money it receives. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to the City of Salem, P.O. Box 619, Salem, Arkansas 72576.

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2
Certificate of deposits - Notes 1 & 2
Receivables: - Note 3
Intergovernmental
Franchise fees
Other
Customers, net of allowance for bad debts
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - Notes 1 & 2
Certificate of deposits - Notes 1 & 2
Total restricted assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation - Notes 1 & 4
Total noncurrent assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows - APERS - Note 7
Deferred pension outflows - FPRF - Note 7
Deferred pension outflows - LOPFI - Note 7
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 719,804 $ 1,086,173 $ 1,785,977
102,829 - 102,829
94,561 - 94,561
7,920 - 7,920
16,651 - 16,651
- 54,637 54,637
11,477 7,054 18,5631
953,242 1,127,864 2,081,106
603,592 402,171 1,005,763
- 116,138 116,138
603,592 518,309 1,121,901
1,188,831 1,175,241 2,364,072
1,792,423 1,693,550 3,485,973
56,506 47,500 104,006
13,243 - 13,243
222 140 - 222,140
291,889 47,500 339,389
$ 3,037,554 $ 2,868,914 $ 5,906,468

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

-16-

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Net Position (Cont.)
December 31, 2022

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 12,184 $ 18,784 $ 30,968
Accrued expenses 53,208 3,800 57,008
Internal balances (189,674) 189,674 -
Unearned Revenue 75,000 347,028 422,028
Total current liabilities (49,282) 559,286 510,004
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer meter deposits - Note 5 - 59,738 59,738
Notes payable - Note 5 1,082 1,082 2,164
Revenue bonds payable - Note 5 B 23,532 23,5632
Total current liabilities payable from restricted
assets 1,082 84,352 85,434
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability - APERS - Note 7 142,223 119,553 261,776
Net pension liability - FPRF - Note 7 75,050 - 75,050
Net pension liability - LOPFI - Note 7 619,443 - 619,443
Notes payable - Note 5 5,363 5,363 10,726
Revenue bonds payable - Note 5 - 262,186 262,186
Total noncurrent liabilities 842,079 387,102 1,229,181
Total liabilities 793,879 1,030,740 1,824,619
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows - APERS - Note 7 7,362 6,188 13,550
Deferred pension liability - FPRF - Note 7 7,207 - 7,207
Deferred pension liability - LOPFI! - Note 7 68,244 - 68,244
Total deferred inflows of resources 82,813 6,188 89,001
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,182,386 883,078 2,085,464
Restricted:
Expendable - Administration of Justice 60,806 - 60,806
Expendable - Act 833 9,875 - 9,875
Expendable - Industrial development 59,252 - 59,252
Expendable - Municipal court 2,157 - 2,157
Expendabie - debt service - 64,641 64,641
Expendable - capital expenditures 471,501 368,745 840,246
Expendable - meter fund - 84,923 84,923
Expendable - street fund 571,687 - 571,687
Unrestricted (196,802) 430,599 233,797
Total net position 2,160,862 1,831,986 3,992,848
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position $ 3,037,554 $ 2,868,914 $ 5,906,468

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stateqelth couch & Company, PA
-17- Certified Public Accountants
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
December 31, 2022

Special
Revenue Total
General Street Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Assets: '

Cash and cash equivalents $ 570,856 $ 148,948 $ 719,804

Certificate of deposits - 102,829 102,829

Receivables - intergovernmental 51,189 43 372 94,561

Receivables - franchise fees 7,920 - 7,920

Receivables - other 16,651 - 16,651

Prepaid expenses 10,068 1,409 11,477

Due from other funds (153,937) 343,611 189,674
Total assets 502,747 640,169 1,142 916
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 603,592 - 603,592
Total restricted assets 603,592 - 603,592
Total assets $ 1,106,339 $ 640,169 $ 1,746,508

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,696 $ 4,488 $ 12,184

Accrued expenses 50,490 2,718 53,208

Unearned revenue 75,000 - 75,000
Total liabilities 133,186 7,206 140,392
Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

Prepaid items 10,068 1,409 11,477

Restricted for:

Street Fund - 631,554 631,554

Committed for:

Industrial development 59,252 - 59,252
Municipal court 2,157 - 2,157
Act 833 9,875 - 9,875
Administration of Justice 60,806 - 60,806

Assigned to:

Capital expenditures 471,501 - 471,501

Unassigned 359,494 - 359,494
Total fund balances 973,153 632,963 1,606,116
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,106,339 $ 640,169 $ 1,746,508

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stater‘g@quh Coush & Co v, PA
-19- Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022

Total fund balance - total governmental funds $ 1,606,116

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets of $4,390,731, net of accumulated

depreciation of $3,201,900, are not financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the

funds. See Note 4 for additional detail. 1,188,831

Deferred outflows of resources are not reported in the
governmental funds but are presented on the government-
wide financial statements 291,889

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the governmental

funds:
Net pension liability - Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (75,050)
Net pension liability - APERS (142,223)
Net pension liability - LOPFI (619,443)
Note payable (6,445)

Deferred inflows of resources are not reported in the
governmental funds but are presented on the government-
wide financial statements (82,813)

Net position of governmental activities $ 2,160,862

The notes to financial statementsgroe_ an integral part of this staten‘;&rﬂt’h‘ i ato v. PA

Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Special
Revenue Total
General Street Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues: :
Intergovernmental revenues - state 3 23,360 $ 125,295 $ 148,655
Property taxes 85,945 17,181 103,126
Sales tax 301,096 197,171 498,267
County fire tax 57,885 - 57,885
Act 833 income 13,607 - 13,607
Franchise fees 81,116 - 81,116
Parks and civic center activities 6,783 - 6,783
Fines, forfeitures and costs 9,715 - 9,715
Interest income 2,570 232 2,802
Other income 20,374 20,567 40,941
Total revenues 602,451 360,446 962,897
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 249,958 - 249,958
Public safety - police 280,211 - 280,211
Public safety - fire 79,220 - 79,220
Recreation and culture 30,294 - 30,294
Streets and highways - 260,409 260,409
Industrial development 15,600 - 15,600
Capital outlay 92,839 10,017 102,856
Debt service: principal payments 6,113 535 6,648
Pension obligation: contributions 39,524 11,255 50,779
Total expenditures 793,759 282,216 1,075,975
Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenditures (191,308) 78,230 (113,078)
Other financing sources (uses):
Grants 58,943 - 58,943
Donation income (expense) 8,583 - 8,583
Interest expense (92) - (92)
Insurance proceeds 296,255 - 296,255
Transfers from (to) other funds (2,450) - (2,450)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 2,175 2,175
Total other financing sources (uses) 361,239 2,175 363,414
Increase in fund balance 169,931 80,405 250,336
Fund balances - beginning of the year 803,222 552,558 1,355,780
Fund balances - ending $ 973,153 $ 632,963 $ 1,606,116

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stater’g@‘mh' Couch & Company, PA
-21- Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 250,336

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount

by which depreciation of $116,908 exceeded capital outlay

of $102,856 in the current period. (14,052)

Long-term net pension obligations, deferred outflows of

resources, and deferred inflows of resources are reported

in the statement of activities, but they do not require the use

of current financial resources. Therefore, the net pension

obligation contractually required contributions are reported

as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the amount

by which change in net pension obligation, deferred outflow of

resources, and deferred inflows of resources $79,177 exceeded

contractually required contributions $50,779 in the current period. (28,398)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. 6,648

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 214,534

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statelq&r’itéh Couch & 0o v, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2022

Water Softball Total
and and Enterprise
Sewer Airport Baseball Funds
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,052,358 $ 7,893 $ 5,922 $ 1,066,173
Accounts receivable - net of allowance
for uncollectibles 54,637 - - 54,637
Prepaid expenses 7,054 - - 7,054
Total current assets 1,114,049 7,893 5,922 1,127,864
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 402,171 - - 402,171
Certificate of deposits 116,138 - 116,138
Total restricted assets 518,309 - - 518,309
Capital assets - net of accumulated
depreciation 930,794 244 447 - 1,175,241
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows 47,500 - B 47,500
Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources $ 2,610,652 $ 252,340 $ 5,922 $ 2,868,914

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this staterwaer}gh
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds (Cont.)
December 31, 2022

Water Softball Total
and and Enterprise
Sewer Airport Baseball Funds
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 18,784 $ - $ - $ 18,784
Accrued expenses 3,800 - - 3,800
Deferred revenue 347,028
Due to other funds 180,284 9,390 - 189,674
Total current liabilities 549,896 9,390 - 559,286
Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets:
Customer meter deposits 59,738 - - 59,738
Note payable 1,082 - - 1,082
Revenue bonds payable 23,5632 - - 23,5632
Total current liabilities payable
from restricted assets 84,352 - - 84,352
Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability - APERS 119,653 - - 119,653
Note payable 5,363 - - 5,363
Revenue bonds payable 262,186 - - 262,186
Total non-current liabilities 387,102 - - 387,102
Total liabilities 1,021,350 9,390 - 1,030,740
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows 6,188 - - 6,188
Net position:
Net investment in capitai assets 638,631 244 447 - 883,078
Restricted expendable 518,309 - - 518,309
Unrestricted 426,174 (1,497) 5,922 430,599
Total net position 1,683,114 242,950 5,922 1,831,986
Total liabilities , deferred inflows
of resources and net position $ 2,610,652 $ 252,340 $ 5,922 $ 2,868,914

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this state%mh Couch & Company, PA
-24- Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Water Softball Total
and and Enterprise
Sewer Airport Baseball Funds
Operating revenues:

Water sales $ 347,122 $ - $ - $ 347,122

Sewer charges 195,459 - - 195,459

Sanitation charges 120,837 - - 120,837

Connection fees 6,750 - - 6,750

Promotional fees = - 26,497 26,497

Other miscellaneous income 761 11,935 - 12,696
Total operating revenues 670,929 11,935 26,497 709,361
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 178,761 - - 178,761

Employee benefits 47,511 - - 47,511

Contract labor - - 4,120 4,120

Taxes, licenses and fees 40,992 - - 40,992

Utilities 51,269 1,437 103 52,809

Sanitation contract 129,531 - - 129,531

Uniforms and equipment - - 7,334 7,334

Supplies and maintenance 56,660 9,971 3,697 70,328

Office expense and postage 22,850 - - 22,850

Insurance and league fees : 12,812 - 3,072 15,884

Depreciation 46,640 24,133 - 70,773

Miscellaneous 3,934 - 4,690 8,624
Total operating expenses 590,960 35,541 23,016 649,517
Operating income (loss) 79,969 (23,606) 3,481 59,844
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest income 5,815 - - 5,815

Insurance proceeds 37,154 - -

Interest expense (14,272) - - (14,272)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 28,697 B - 28,697
Income (loss) before transfers and capital grants 108,666 (23,606) 3,481 88,541
Transfer from other funds - 450 2,000 2,450
Increase (decrease) in net position 108,666 (23,156) 5,481 90,991
Net position - beginning of year 1,474,448 266,106 441 1,740,995
Net position - ending $ 1,583,114 $ 242,950 $ 5,922 $ 1,831,986

The notes to financial statements;rse_ an integral part of this statermrl]"gh. e v, PA

Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Water Softball Total
and and Enterprise
Sewer Airport Baseball Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers $ 631,844 $ 11,935 $ 26,497 $ 670,276

Payments to suppliers (216,975) (11,408) (23,016) (251,399)

Payments to employees (226,308) - - (226,308)

Other operating revenue (expenses) 326,655 - - 326,655
Net cash provided by operating activities 515,216 527 3,481 519,224
Cash flows from non-capital

financing activities:
Transfers in - 450 2,000 2,450
Net cash provided by non-capital

financing activities - 450 2,000 2,450
Cash flows from capital and related

financing activities:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (20,034) 6,117) - (26,151)

Principal payment on debt (23,487) - - (23,487)

Insurance proceeds 37,154 - - 37,154

Interest payments on debt (14,272) - - (14,272)
Net cash (used in) capital and related

financing activities (20,639) 6,117) - (26,756)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest earned 5,815 - - 5,815
Net cash provided by investing activities 5,815 - = 5,815
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 500,392 (5,140) 5,481 500,733
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,070,275 13,033 441 1,083,749
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 1,570,667 $ 7,893 $ 5,922 $ 1,584,482
Reconciliation of cash to the statement of net

position - proprietary funds:

Cash in current assets $ 1,052,358 $ 7,893 3 5,922 $ 1,066,173

Cash in restricted assets 518,309 - - 518,309
Total cash $ 1,570,667 $ 7,893 $ 5,922 $ 1,584,482
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest $ 14,308 $ - $ - $ 14,308

(Continued)
26- Welch, Couch & Company, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds (Cont.)
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Water Softball Total
and and Enterprise
Sewer Airport Baseball Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 79,969 $ (23,606) $ 3,481 $ 59,844
Non cash items included in operating income (loss):
Depreciation expense 46,640 24133 - 70,773
Net changes in:
Receivables (1,930) - - (1,930)
Prepaid expenses 2,667 - - 2,667
Accounts payable 2,011 - - 2,011
Accrued expenses (36) - - (36)
Customer meter deposits 2,798 - - 2,798
Net pension liability 84,859 - - 84,859
Deferred outflows of resources (21,799) - - (21,799)
Deferred inflows of resources (61,359) - - (61,359)
Other liabilities 381,396 - - 381,396
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 515,216 $ 527 $ 3,481 $ 519,224
27 Welch, Couch & Company, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A) Reporting Entity

The City of Salem, Arkansas is a municipal corporation organized July 21, 1900 and governed by an
elected mayor and a four-member council. On January 24, 2003, the City, having a population of 1,500 or
more, passed an ordinance to become a city of the first class in accordance with Act 269 of 1971 of the
Arkansas General Assembly.

B) Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide financial statements (based on the City as a
whole) and fund financial statements. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize
activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. In the governmental-wide Statement
of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a
consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reflected on a full accrual economic resource basis, which
incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable within a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured and basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the time of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Debt service expenditures and
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when
payments are due.

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (cont.)

Property, franchise, sales taxes, and investment income (including unrealized gains and losses) are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. The portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to
be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measured and available only when the government receives cash.

e Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects). The special revenue
fund reported on the governmental fund statements is the street fund.

e Proprietary funds include the following fund types:

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business or where the council has decided that the determination of revenues
earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. The
proprietary fund statements report the water and sewer fund (a major fund) and two other individual
funds.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's water and sewer
function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water and sewer fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for water and
sewer fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in more than one classification, it is the
City of Salem’s policy to use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned as they are needed.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

D) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

E) Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Deposits and investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term certificate of deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Legal or contractual provisions for deposits and investments:
a. Governmental fund types

State law generally requires that municipal funds be deposited in federally insured banks located
in the State of Arkansas. The municipal deposits may be in the form of checking accounts,
savings accounts, and/or time deposits. Public funds may also be invested in direct obligations of
the United States of America and obligations the principal and interest on which are fully
guaranteed by the United States of America.

b. Pension trust funds
(i) Firemen’s pension

State law provides that if the total assets of the Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund are less than
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), the funds may be deposited or invested as noted
below. If the total assets of the fund exceed one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), the
fund may employ a professional investment advisor to invest the assets subject to the
prudent investor rule and/or in no-load mutual funds.

(ii) Investments

The funds may include deposits in federally insured savings and loans located in the State of
Arkansas and notes secured by mortgages on real estate guaranteed either by the United
States government or by a corporation approved by the State Commissioner of Insurance.
Investments of other types are allowed by state law, but it has not been a common practice of
the City to utilize them.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

E) Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont.)

1. Deposits and investments (cont.)

b. Pension trust funds (cont.)
(iii) Municipal judge’s and clerk’s retirement

Municipal judge’s and clerk’s retirement funds are allowed the same type of deposits and
investments as listed above. Additionally, they may be used to purchase interest-bearing
securities in the State of Arkansas, or certificates of the United States, or any or all of such
securities. They may also be deposited in federally insured savings and loans located in the
State of Arkansas. If the total assets of the fund exceed one hundred thousand dollars
($100,000), assets may be invested subject to the prudent investor rule.

2. Receivables and payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion
of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of interfund loans).
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Accounts payable consists of various trade accounts which are generally payable within thirty (30)
days.

At December 31, 2022, meter deposits are liabilities payable to water and sewer customers as a
requirement to obtain services.

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed on the same date. The bills
are considered past due after October of each year at which time the applicable property is subject to

lien and penalties and interest are assessed. All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectibles.

3. Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4, Restricted assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside
for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants.

5. Capital assets, depreciation and amortization

Capital assets, which inciude infrastructure, are reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

E) Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont.)

5. Capital assets, depreciation and amortization (cont.)

The City's property, plant, equipment and infrastructure costing $500 or more and that have useful
lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the
government-wide financial statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with
all other capital assets. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend
useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the
cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the
resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives for depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years

Buildings 10-50
Infrastructure 25-50
System infrastructure 50-60
Vehicles 5
Office equipment 5
Computer equipment 5

Depreciation expense is charged directly to the department/function based on the department that
utilizes the related asset.

6. Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources applicable to future periods.

7. Restricted resources

When the City has both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance a particular
program, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources before unrestricted resources.

8. Compensated absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave. Vacation pay, when material, is
accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability. Vacation pay that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure
and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. There was no accrued vacation pay
considered to be material.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

E) Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont.)

9. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as
liabilities. Bond discounts and premiums are recognized as an adjustment of interest expense under
GASB 65 and amortized using the effective interest method.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt as other financing
sources of the current period.

10. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources applicable to future periods.

11. Net position / fund balance

Government-wide statements

Net position of the City is classified in four components. Net position invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consist of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of borrowings used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets.
Restricted expendable net position is noncapital assets that must be used for a particular purpose as
specified by creditors, grantors or donors external to the City, including amounts deposited with
trustees as required by bond indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related
borrowings. Restricted nonexpendable net position is noncapital assets that are required to be
maintained in perpetuity as specified by parties external to the City, such as permanent endowments.
Unrestricted net position is remaining assets less remaining liabilities that do not meet the definition of
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted expendable, or restricted nonexpendable.

Fund statements

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

» Nonspendable fund balance — amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or
are required to be maintained intact;

e Restricted fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation;

e Committed fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself,
using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to
remove or change the constraint;

e Assigned fund balance — amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can
be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body
delegates the authority;
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

E) Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont.)

11. Net position / fund balance (cont.)

Fund statements (cont.)

e Unassigned fund balance — amounts that are available for any purpose; positive unassigned
amounts are reported only in the general fund. Other governmental funds do not report positive
unassigned fund amounts.

City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an
ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund
balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of
the fund (such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by City Council
through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase
of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes).

F) New Accounting Pronouncements

No new accounting pronouncements were applicable or adopted by the City in 2022.

Note 2 — Significant Concentration of Credit Risk

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; bonds and other
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or instrumentalities of the State of Arkansas; bonds of any
city, county, school district or special district of the State of Arkansas; bonds of any state; or a surety bond
having an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the deposits.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, an entity's deposits may not be returned to it.
The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provision of state law. At year
end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $3,010,707 and the bank balance was $3,009,788. The
entire bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City’s agent or
by the bank’s investment custodian.

Due to higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the City’s risks for uninsured and uncollateralized
deposits and investments could be higher or lower than at year end.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 2 — Significant Concentration of Credit Risk (Cont.)

Investment income for cash equivalents and certificate of deposits are comprised of the foliowing for the year
ended December 31, 2022:

2022
Income
Governmental
Interest income - General Fund $ 2,570
Interest income - Street Fund 232
Proprietary
Interest income - Water and Sewer Fund 5,815
Total interest income $ 8,617

Interest rate risk investments — the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates.

Credit risk — the City does not currently maintain a written investment policy regarding credit risk limits.

Concentration of credit risk investments — the City currently does not have a stated investment policy that
outlines the limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.

The carrying amounts of deposits and investments are included in the City's statement of net position as
follows:

2022
Carrying amount:
Deposits $3,010,707
$ 3,010,707
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 2 — Significant Concentration of Credit Risk (Cont.)

2022
Included in the following balance sheet captions:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,785977
Certificate of deposits 102,829
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,005,763
Certificate of deposits 116,138
$ 3,010,707

Note 3 — Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2022, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:
Proprietary
Governmental Funds Funds
Special
General Revenue Enterprise Total

Franchise fees $ 7,920 $ - $ - 3 7,920
Sales tax 48,118 32,051 - 80,169
Water and sewer billings - - 56,212 56,212
Intergovernmental revenue - state 3,071 11,321 - 14,392
Other 16,651 - - 16,651
Less: allowance for uncollectibles - - (1,575) (1,575)

Net receivables $ 75,760 $ 43,372 $ 54,637 $ 173,769
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Note 4 — Capital Assets and Depreciation

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets and the related accumulated depreciation for
governmental activities of the City for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Balance Balance
Dec. 31, 2021 Additions Retirements Dec. 31, 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated: '

Land $ 15,000 $ - $ B $ 15,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 15,000 - - 15,000
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings:

Administration 683,101 10,017 - 693,118

Ballpark & recreation center 1,120,342 - - 1,120,342

Police department 204,382 - - 204,382

Fire department 343,422 - - 343,422

Street department 49,129 10,017 - 59,146

2,400,376 20,034 - 2,420,410

Equipment:

Administration 32,292 - - 32,292

Police department 208,158 18,251 - 226,409

Fire department 61,113 64,571 - 125,684

Street department 288,728 - - 288,728

Park equipment 49,208 - - 49,208

639,499 82,822 - 722,321

Infrastructure:

Street department 1,233,000 - - 1,233,000
Total capital assets being depreciated 4,272,875 102,856 - 4,375,731
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings:

Administration (444,288) (20,919) - (465,207)

Ballpark & recreation center (380,049) (29,461) - (409,510)

Police department (186,861) (5,840) - (192,701)

Fire department (314,310) (9,703) - (324,013)

Street department (39,651) (1,927) - (41,578)

(1,365,159) (67,850) (1,433,009)

Equipment:

Administration (14,975) (3,482) - (18,457)

Police department (104,708) (32,503) - (137,211)

Fire department (52,938) (3,875) - (56,813)

Street department (271,993) (6,685) - (278,678)

Park equipment (42,219) (2,513) - (44,732)

(486,833) (49,058) - (535,891)

Infrastructure:

Street department (1,233,000) - - (1,233,000)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,084,992) (116,908) - (3,201,900)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,187,883 (14,052) - 1,173,831

Capital assets, net $ 1,202,883 $ (14,052) $ - $ 1,188,831
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Note 4 — Capital Assets and Depreciation (Cont.)

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets and the related
business-type activities of the City for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land:
Water & sewer department
Airport
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings, systems & improvements:
Water department
Water plant
Sewer plant
Airport

Equipment:
Office equipment
Service equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, systems & improvements:
Water department
Water plant
Sewer plant
Airport

Equipment:
Office equipment
Service equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

accumulated depreciation for

Balance Balance
Dec. 31, 2021 Additions Retirements Dec. 31,2022
3 45,624 $ - $ - $ 45,624

95,200 - - 95,200
140,824 - - 140,824
6,072 20,034 - 26,106
1,237,714 - - 1,237,714
1,437,443 - - 1,437,443
479,754 6,117 - 485,871
3,160,983 26,151 - 3,187,134
70,154 - - 70,154
217,810 - - 217,810
287,964 - - 287,964
3,448,947 26,151 - 3,475,098
(1,909) (589) - (2,498)
(927,296) (22,037) - (949,333)
(858,669) (20,051) - (878,720)
(312,491) (24,133) - (336,624)
(2,100,365) (66,810) - (2,167,175)
(61,069) (2,270) - (63,339)
(208,474) (1,693) - (210,167)
(269,543) (3,963) - (273,506)
(2,369,908) (70,773) - (2,440,681)
1,079,039 (44,622) - 1,034,417
$ 1,219,863 $ (44,622) $ = $ 1,175,241
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 4 — Capital Assets and Depreciation (Cont.)

Depreciation expense was charged as direct expense to activities of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Recreation and culture
Streets and highways

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Airport

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 24,401
51,921
31,974

8,612

$ 116,908

46,640
24,133

$ 70,773

Note 5 — Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabiljties

Governmental Activities

A schedule of changes in long-term debt and other noncurrent liabilities for governmental activities of the City

for December 31, 2022 follow:

Notes Payable
Bank of Salem (A)
NAEC (B)

Total revenue bonds payable

Balance at

Balance at Amount
December 31, December 31, Due Within
2021 Additions Reductions 2022 One Year
$ 5,579 $ = $ (5,579)  § - $ -
7,514 (1,069) 6,445 1,082
$ 13,093 $ - $ (6,648) $ 6,445 $ 1,082

The terms and due dates of long-term debt for governmental activities of the City at December 31, 2022

follow:
(A)
Date of original loan:

Original amount:
Terms:

Note payable — Bank of Salem

October 12, 2016, renewed October 12, 2017

$230,050

Principal and interest of $1,000 due monthly with interest at 3.75%, maturing
on June 1, 2023, secured by real property.
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Note 5 - Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Cont.)

(B) Note Payable — North Arkansas Electric Cooperative

Date of original loan: September 14, 2021

Original amount: $8,826 governmental fund; $8,825 business-type fund

Terms: Principal and interest of $195.22 due monthly with interest at 1.50%,
maturing September 2028, secured by equipment.

A summary of principal and interest repayments for the City's governmental activities is as follows:

Due in Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,082 $ 89 $ 1,171
2024 1,098 73 1,171
2025 1,115 56 1,171
2026 1,132 40 1,172
2027 1,149 22 1,171

2028-2032 869 6 875
$ 6,445 $ 286 $ 6,731

Business-Type Activities

A schedule of changes in long-term debt and other noncurrent liabilities for business-type activities of the City
for December 31, 2022 follows:

Balance at Balance at Amount
December 31, December 31, Due Within
2021 Additions Reductions 2022 One Year
Revenue bonds payable
Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1990 (A) $ 166,840 $ = $ (16,170) $ 150,670 $ 16,996
Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series 1999 (B) 141,298 - (6,250) 135,048 6,536
Total revenue bonds payable 308,138 - (22,420) 285,718 23,532
Notes payable
NAEC (C) 7,512 - (1,067) 6,445 1,082
Total notes payable 7,512 - (1,067) 6,445 1,082
Other liabilities
Meter deposits $ 56,940 $ 8,100 $ (5,302) $ 59,738 $ =
Total other liabilities 56,940 8,100 (5,302) 59,738 -
Total noncurrent liabilities $ 372,590 $ 8,100 $ (28,789) $ 351,901 $ 24,614
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Note 5 — Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Cont.)

Business-Type Activities (cont.)

The terms and due dates of long-term debt for business-type activities of the City at December 31, 2022

follow:

(A) Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1990

Bond issue date:
Original issue amount:

Terms:

Purpose of issue:

Paying agent:

Debt service reserve:

May 17, 1991
$413,000

Monthly payments of $2,012 payable to USDA Rural Development with
interest at 5%, secured with water and sewer system assets and revenues.

Construction of betterments and improvements to the water and sewer
system.

USDA, Rural Development

$24,144 (fully funded)

(B) Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

Bond issue date:
Original issue amount:

Terms:

Purpose of issue:

Paying agent:

Debt service reserve:

September 26, 2000
$229,000

Monthly payments of $1,040 payable to USDA Rural Development with
interest at 4.5%, secured with water and sewer system assets and
revenues. The bonds will be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Water system improvements
USDA, Rural Development

$10,392 (fully funded)

(C) Note Payable — North Arkansas Electric Cooperative

Date of original loan:
Original amount:

Terms:

September 14, 2021
$8,826 governmental fund; $8,825 business-type fund

Principal and interest of $195.22 due monthly with interest at 1.50%,
maturing September 2028, secured by equipment.

As of December 31, 2022, the City has $34,536 in cash and cash equivalents reserved for debt service for the
City’s water and sewer revenue bonds.
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Note 5 — Long-Term Debt and Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Cont.)

Business-Type Activities (cont.)

A summary of principal and interest repayments for the City’s proprietary funds, is as follows:

Due in Principal Interest Total
2023 3 24,614 $ 13,181 $ 37,795
2024 25,800 11,995 37,795
2025 27,045 10,751 37,796
2026 28,351 9,444 37,795
2027 29,721 8,074 37,795

2028-2032 102,255 21,272 123,527
2033-2037 54,377 8,023 62,400
$ 292,163 $ 82,740 $ 374,903

Note 6 — Other Information

A) Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for the general, street, and water and sewer funds.

On or before the last Thursday in October of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for
appropriations to the City’s mayor so that a budget may be prepared. Before November 30, the proposed
budget is presented to the City’s council for review. The council holds public hearings and a final budget
must be prepared and adopted no later than January 31.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City’s department heads may
make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments
require the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the iine-item level.

B) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased
from an independent third party and participation in public entity risk pools. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three years. There were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the major categories of risk from coverage in the prior year.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Cont.)

B) Risk Management (cont.)

The City participates in the Arkansas Municipal League program (public entity risk pool) for coverage in
the following area:

Workers® compensation — This program provides statutory benefits for losses incurred by municipal
officials, employees and volunteer fire fighters while performing work for the municipality. Rates for
municipalities participating in this program are revised annually based on the cost experience of the
particular municipality or group as determined by the workers’ compensation commission.

The City participates in the Arkansas Public Entities Risk Management Association (APERMA) public
entity risk pool for coverage in the following areas:

Building and contents program — this program is a blanket policy with varying coverage on each
separate property with a $5,000 deductible. The City pays into the program each year a charge
established annually by the risk management fund board for covered City property.

Vehicle program — this program consists of the following:

* Liability — This program may pay all sums the City legally must pay as damages because of bodily
injury, death or property damage to which this agreement applies involving a covered City vehicle and
for which the City is liable. The limit of payment for in-state claims is $25,000 for bodily injury per
person, $50,000 for bodily injury per accident and $25,000 for property damage per accident
($100,000 respectively for out-of-state claims). The City shall pay into the program each year a
charge established annually by the risk management fund board for covered City vehicles owned or
leased by the City.

» Physical damage — This program covers vehicles and mobile equipment which are the property of
the participating city. Property is valued at the cost to repair or replace the property after deduction for
depreciation. Loss amounts will be reduced by the deductible amount of $1,000 for police department
vehicles and $500 for all other covered vehicles and mobile equipment. The City agrees to pay into
the program each year a service charge established annually by the risk management fund board for
covered property.

e General liability program — The program shall provide legal defense in civil rights suits against the
city government of a participating city and pay judgments imposed on city officials and employees
and the city government and city-formed boards and commissions. Coverage is limited to $250,000
per case with an annual aggregate of $350,000. The City shall pay into the program each year a
charge established annually by the risk management fund board for this coverage.

Self-insured fidelity bond program — the City also participates in the self-insured fidelity bond program
administered by the governmental bonding board. This program covers actual losses sustained by the
participating entity through any fraudulent or dishonest act or acts committed by any of the officials or
employees, acting alone or in collusion with others, during the bond period to an amount not exceeding
the lesser of $250,000 or the amount of the bond. Premiums for coverage are determined by the state
risk manager and approved by the board. These premiums are paid by the state treasurer from funds
withheld from the municipal aid fund. There is a $1,000 deductible per occurrence.
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Note 7 — Retirement Plans

A) City of Salem, Arkansas Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund

Plan Description

The Fireman’s Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF) is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit for the
volunteer and part-time firefighters hired prior to 1983. The City entered into an agreement with the
Arkansas Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) on June 26, 2020. Per the agreement LOPFI
assumed administration and a portion of the obligation of the plan pursuant to Act 364 of 1981, as
amended, and Act 655 of 1983 of the General Assembly of the State of Arkansas. In addition, the City
agreed to contribute an actuarially determined rate to the plan to fund the plan’s net pension liability over
a 20-year period with cost-of-living adjustments annually, if applicable. As agreed to with LOPFI the
structure of benefits is unchanged. The plan issues separate stand-alone financial statements and can be
obtained from the City.

Membership Information

There are presently seven inactive firefighters receiving benefits, and no active firefighters participating in
the plan. All firefighters hired after January 1, 1983 participate in a separate LOFI retirement system as
described in paragraph (c) below. As such FPRF is closed to new members.

Benefits

The plan provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Retirement benefits are paid to participants
after twenty years of service. Surviving spouses and dependent children are provided benefits of
deceased firefighters. Disability benefits are paid to firefighters who become permanently disabled, unless
disability resulted from other employment.

Basis of Accounting

The City of Salem’s financial statements for its defined benefit and defined contribution plans are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period
in which the contributions are due. City contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the City
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Determine Fair Value of Investments

The fair value of investments other than mutual funds is determinable using quoted market prices. The
fair value of investments in mutual funds is determined using the funds’ current per share price.

Net Pension Liability

At the date of the last actuarial valuation, December 31, 2022, the unfunded accrued liability for the
pension plan was $75,050. The annual required contribution (ARC) provided in the December 31, 2022
actuarial valuation calculates the amount sufficient to pay off the unfunded actuarial liability over a twenty-
year period plus the payment of the 2022 normal cost for benefits to be $8,055.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
Designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

December 31, 2022

A) City of Salem, Arkansas Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund (cont.)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (cont.)

The State of Arkansas Fire and Police Pension Review Board is responsible for the coordination of the
actuarial valuations performed on the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Pension and Relief Funds. Actuarial
valuations were last evaluated as of December 31, 2022. Actuarial assumptions used in evaluating the
fund include entry age cost method, book value is used for valuing assets, and amortization period, and a
7.5% investment rate of return. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value of
investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected benefit on a closed basis. The amortization period at December 31, 2022 was eighteen years.

Valuation Date:

Notes

December 31, 2022

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 315t of each year, which is 12 months prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method

Price Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other information:

Notes

Individual Entry-Age Normal

Closed Amortization Period based on projected benefit factors

19 years beginning January 1, 2022

5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor (for funding purposes)
2.50%

N/A

7.50%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of
Eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant to
an experience study of the period 2012-2016.

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant, Disabled Retiree and Employee
mortality tables for males and females. The tables applied credibility
adjustments of 135% for males and 125% for females and were

adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements using Scale
MP-2016.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

A) City of Salem, Arkansas Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (cont.)

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The rates were built
on a target allocation for all local police and fire pension funds, and the target for an individual fund will
vary within the guidelines of Arkansas law and regulation.

The target allocation and the long-term expected rates of return are shown in the table below:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return
Fixed income 25% -0.35%
Domestic equity 42% 4.35%
Foreign equity 18% 6.38%
Alternative Investments 15% 6.43%
Total 100%

Expected Inflation 2.25%

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 7.25% was used to measure the Total Pension Liability. This single discount rate
was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments, the projection of cash flows based
on the assumptions, and the pension plan’s net position as of the valuation date. The resulting single

discount rate was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension
Liability.

Components of the Net Pension Liability

The components of the net pension liability at December 31, 2022 were as follows:

Total pension liability $ 135,747
Minus: Plan's fiduciary net position 60,697
Net pension liability $ 75,050

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 44.71%
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

A) City of Salem, Arkansas Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund (cont.)

Regarding the sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following
presents the plan’s Net Pension Liability calculated using a single discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what
the plan's Net Pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate one percent
point lower and one percentage point higher:

Current Single

1% Decrease Rate Assumed 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability $ 145,883 $ 135,747 $ 126,668
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 60,697 60,697 60,697
Net Pension Liability $ 85,186 $ 75,050 $ 65,971

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
Balances at December 31, 2021 $ 144,840 $ 80,419 $ 64,421
Changes for the year
a. Service cost - - -
b. Interest on TPL 9,562 - 9,562
*c. Differences between expected and 255 - 255
actual experience - - B
d. Employee contributions - - -
e. Employer contributions - 8,055 (8,055)
f. Net investment income - (11,222) 11,222
g. Benefits and refunds (16,481) (16,481) -
h. Administrative expenses - (74) 74
i. Benefit changes - E -
j. Assumption changes (2,429) = (2,429)
k. Local plan administrative mergers - - -
I. Other/reconciliation - - -
Net changes (9,093) (19,722) 10,629
Balances at December 31, 2022 $ 135,747 $ 60,697 $ 75,050
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

A) City of Salem, Arkansas Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund (cont.)

GASB 68 Pension Expense and Deferred Outflow/Inflows

For the year ending December 31, 2022, the City of Salem recognized pension benefit of $6,140. At
December 31, 2022, the City of Salem reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - -
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions 13,243 7,207
Total $ 13,243 $ 7,207

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net
Year Deferred
Ending Outflow
December 31, of Resources
2023 $ (216)
2024 1,023
2025 1,919
2026 3,310
2027
Total $ 6,036
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

B) Mayor Retirement Benefits

Mayors of cities of the first class are eligible for retirement pay as authorized by Ark. Code Ann. 24-12-
123. Any person who shall serve as mayor of the City for a period of not less than ten (10) years, upon
reaching age sixty (60) years, or any person who shall serve as mayor of the City for a period of not less
than twenty (20) years, without regard to age, shall be entitled to retire at an annual retirement benefit
during the remainder of his or her natural life, payable at the rate of one-half (%) of the salary payable to
the mayor at the time of his or her retirement payable from the general fund.

No accrual is made for the retirement liability as monthly payments are expensed when paid. Mayor
retirement benefits were $4,968 for period ending December 31, 2022.

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI)

Plan Description: The Arkansas Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) is a statewide cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the LOPFI Board of Trustees. LOPFI
provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to police and fire employees of political subdivisions of
the State of Arkansas. LOPFI| was created by Act 364 of the 1981 General Assembly. Employees hired
after January 1, 1983, whose political subdivision had a retirement system in effect July 1, 1981, are
eligible to participate in the plan. The City allows paid police and volunteer firefighters to participate in
LOPFI. LOPFI issues a publicly available report, which may be obtained by writing to LOPFI, P.O. Drawer
34164, Little Rock, Arkansas 72203, or by calling 501.682.1745.

Benefits: LOPFI provides for a retirement benefit paid to the member on a monthly basis. The monthly
benefit is based on a formula provided by law for the member’s lifetime. The member has several options
in calculating the benefit, which is normally the result of these factors: age at retirement, retirement
multiplier, amount of credit services (years and months), and final average pay (FAP). Each option
available to the member provides for a different calculation based on these factors.

Contributions: Contributions to LOPFI are made by both the member and employers. Member
contribution rates are established by the LOPFI Board of Trustees. The employer contributions are
actuarially determined on an annual basis. The current employee contribution rate is 2.50% of covered
payroll for police officers. The City contributed 23.50% of covered employees’ salaries to the plan for
police officers and $5.90 per month per member for volunteer firefighters for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Contributions by the City to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2022, were
$41,812 for paid police, and $14,939 for volunteer firefighters.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2022, the City reported liability of $619,443 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the ratio of the City’s actual contributions to the
plan during the measurement period to the total employer contributions to the plan of the group for the
measurement period.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) (Cont.)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $70,200 related to this
plan. At December 31, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience $ 51,771 $ 100
Net difference between projected
and acutal investment earnings on
pension plan investments 146,871 -
Changes of assumptions 5,019 50,713
Changes in proportion and differences
between employer contributions
and share of contributions 18,479 17,431
Total $ 222,140 $ 68,244

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred

Year Ending Inflow of

December 31, Resources
2023 $ 21,069
2024 24,141
2025 39,493
2026 69,193
Total $ 153,896
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) (Cont.)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all perist included in the measurement:

Paid Service
Valuation Date: December 31, 2020
Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 315t which is one year prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 14 years beginning January 1, 2022

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Wage Inflation 3.25%

Price Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.75% to 18.25%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%, as adopted by the Board

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of

eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2012-2016.

Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant, Disabled Retiree and Employee
mortality tables for males and females. The tables applied credibility
adjustments of 135% for males and 125% for females and were
adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements using Scale
MP-2016.

Other Information:

Notes There were no changes in methods or assumptions in the
December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation. There were benefit
provision changes for the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation.
They include Act 72 of 2021 related to duty disability benefits, act
374 of 2021 related to reciprocal service and final average pay and
Act 344 of 2021 related to return to service for retirees.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) (Cont.)

Volunteer Service

Valuation Date: December 31, 2020

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31, which is one year prior to beginning
of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Increasing Dollar, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 13 years beginning January 1, 2022

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Price Inflation 2.50%

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%, as adopted by the Board

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of

eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant to
an experience study of the period 2012-20186.

Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant, Disabled Retiree and Employee
mortality tables for males and females. The tables applied credibility
adjustments of 135% for males and 125% for females and were
adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements using Scale

MP-2016.

Other Information:

Notes There were no changes in benefit, methods or assumptions in the

December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation.

-52.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI1) (Cont.)

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return. The rates were built on a
target allocation for all pension funds; the target for an individual fund will vary within the guidelines of
Arkansas law and regulation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return
Fixed income 25% -0.35%
Domestic equity 42% 4.35%
Foreign equity 18% 6.38%
Alternative Investments 15% 6.43%

Total 100%

Discount Rate

In the year ended December 31, 2021, actuarial valuation, a single discount rate of 7.25% was used to
measure the total pension liability. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on
pension plan investments of 7.25%. The projection of cash flows, based on the assumption made, found
that the pension plan’s net position was available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.25%) that the current rate:

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Net pension liability $ 921,301 $ 619,443 $ 375,859
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

C) Local Police and Fire Retirement System (LOPFI) (Cont.)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
LOPF! financial report, which can be found at hitp:/lopfi-prb.camfopfilreports!.

D) Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan that covers municipal employees whose municipalities
have elected coverage under this System. The Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for PERS. That report may be obtained by writing to Arkansas Public Employees Retirement
System, One Union National Plaza, 124 W. Capitol, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 or by calling 1-800-682-
7377.

APERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit plan which covers all State employees who
are not covered by another authorized plan. The plan was established by the authority of the Arkansas
General Assembly with the passage of Act 177 of 1957. The costs of administering the plan are paid out
of investment earnings.

The general administration and responsibility for the proper operation of the System is vested in the
Board of Trustees of the Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (the Board).

Benefits Provided

Benefit provisions are set forth in Arkansas Code Annotated, Title 24, Chapters 5 and 6 and may only be
amended by the Arkansas General Assembly. APERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits.
Retirement benefits are determined as a percentage of the member's highest 3-year average
compensation times the member’s years of service.

Members are eligible to retire with a full benefit under the following conditions:

e atage 65 with 5 years of service,

* atany age with 28 years actual service,

¢ atage 60 with 20 years of actual service if under the old contributory plan (prior to July 1, 2005),
or
at age 55 with 35 years of credited service for elected or public safety officials.
Members may retire with a reduced benefit at age 55 with at least 5 years of actual service or at
any age with 25 years of service.

e The Plan also provides for disability and survivor benefits.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

D) Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (Cont.)

Benefits Provided (Cont.)

Under Arkansas Code, the following groups or individuals are allowed credit for years of service on a
basis greater than 1:1:

Public safety members 1.5 per year for individuals employed prior to July 1, 1997
Governor 3 per year if first elected to public office prior to July 1, 1999
Elected state constitutional officers 2.5 per year if first elected to public office prior to July 1, 1999
Elected under state division 2 per year if first elected to public office prior to July 1, 1999
Local elected officials 2 per year

The benefit provisions provided by the public employees retirement plan are established by state law and
may be amended only by the General Assembly. Retiree benefit increases are calculated each year on
July 1 for the following 12 months. The redetermined amount is the amount of the benefit payable as of
the immediately preceding July 1, increase by 3%.

Contributions

Contribution requirements are set forth in Arkansas Code Annotated, Title 24, Chapter 4. The
contributions are expected to be sufficient to finance the costs of benefits earned by members during the
year and make a level payment that, if paid annually over a reasonable period of future years, will fully
cover the unfunded costs of benefit commitments for services previously rendered (A.C.A. 24-2-701)(a)).
Members who began service prior to July 1, 2005 are not required to make contributions to APERS.
Members who began service on or after July 1, 2005 are required to contribute 5% of their salary.
Employers are required to contribute at a rate established by the Board of Trustees of APERS based on
an actuary’s determination of a rate required to fund the plan (A.C.A. 24-2-701(c)(3)). Employers
contributed 15.32% of compensation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. In some cases, an
additional 2.5% of member and employer contributions are required for elected officials.

The City’s contributions to APERS for the years ending December 31, 2022 and 2021, was $31,089 and
$31,008, respectively, equal to the required contribution for the year.

APERS Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about APERS's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued APERS
Financial Report available at http://www.apers.org/annualreports.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources to Pensions

At December 31, 2022, the City reported a liability of $261,776 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability.

The collective net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. Each
employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer's share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all participating employers. As of June 30, 2022, the
City’s proportion was .0097 %.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

D) Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (Cont.)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $36,846. At December 31,
2022, the City’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

from the following sources:

Difference between expected and
actual experience

Net difference between projected

and acutal investment earnings on
pension plan investments

Changes of assumptions

Changes in proportion and differences
between employer contributions

and share of contributions

Contribution subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
3 6,283 $ (3,161)
55,222 -
24,050 (10,389)
18,451 -
$ 104,006 $ (13,550)

$18,451 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ending December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year
Ending
December 31

2023
2024
2025
2026

Total

_56-

Net
Deferred
Outflow

of Resources

$

17,646
17,313
(1,465)
38,511

72,005
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

D) Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (cont.)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 7.15%
Salary Increases 3.25% —9.85%
Inflation Rate 3.25%
Discount Rate 7.15%
Mortality Table RP-2006 weighted generational mortality tables for healthy

annuitant, disability, or employee death in service, as applicable.
The tables applied credibility adjustments of 135% for males and
125% for females and were adjusted for fully generational
mortality improvements using Scale MP-2017.

Investment Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the current asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected price inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for the 10-year period
from 2020 - 2029 were based upon capital market assumptions provided by the plan’s investment
consultant. For each major asset class included in the plan’s current asset allocation as of June 30, 2022,
these best estimates are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real
Asset Allocation Target Rate of Return
Broad domestic equity 37% 6.20%
International equity 24% 6.69%
Real assets 16% 4.81%
Absolute return 5% 3.05%
Domestic fixed 18% 57%
Total 100%
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021

Note 7 — Retirement Plans (Cont.)

D) Arkansas Public Employees Retirement System (cont.)

Discount Rate — A single discount rate of 7.15% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.15%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at
rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate.
Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following presents the
participating employers’ net pension liability, calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what
the participating employers’ net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate
that is 1% lower and 1% higher than the current rate.

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%
Net pension liability $416,174 $261,776 $134,304

Note 8 — Related Party

On June 27, 2020 ordinance 2020-216 was enacted by passage of the city council to allow Ted York to
continue to serve on the city council while also participating in ownership of a local waste disposal
business (Ozark Waste Disposal, Inc.). The City entered into a sanitation agreement on June 27, 2020
with Ozark Waste Disposal, Inc. in which the city will collect sanitation fees on behalf of Ozark Waste
Disposal, Inc. which will be included in each resident's water bill and Ozark Waste Disposal, Inc. will
provide waste disposal services to residents of the city.

Sanitation revenue and expense were $120,837 and $104,455, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Sanitation billings and payments are reported with the water and sewer department.

Note 9 — Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 15, 2024, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued. No events were noted which should require recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements.

Welch, Couch & Company, PA

-58- Certified Public Accountants



Imml
poday sJolpny 1uspuadapu) 88

‘ajqejieAe s1 Ji se pajussaid aq [jim ejep JO YoM S1eal us)

%518 %6¢°08 %08°'6L %G9'GL %G9'GL %59°8. %8€'GL %LG'€8 %1E'8L Aiiqel| uoisuad [ejo}
a8y} Jo abejusasad e se uonisod jau Aeionpy ueld

%SZ°08 %08°¢01 %66'1¢1 %8E eyl %LLLLL %L0°9¢) %9L9%1 %0G°8¢ %00°621 llosAed aako|dws-palanco sy
’ Jo abejusolad e se (Josse) Ajjigel| uoisuad
18U 8y 4o areys ajeuoiuodold 5,410

9/6'Ckl ¢ 8€0'6SL ¢ pIR'e9r ¢ 00Tl ¢ eve'ZLL $ 602290 §  €8¥'09L $  Z0¥'702 §  1€6'20C ¢ l|osAed sakojdwrs-pasanco sAl0

6YS'SLL $ £80°G9) $  €lz9le $  voLekZ $ 089'c0z $  ee¥lle $ yeg'see § 626LL § 99T § (1esse) Ayniqer| uossuad
19U 3y} Jo areys djeuoiodord s A0

%1800°0 %0600°0 %0600°0 %.600°0 %Z600°0 %.800°0 %2800°0 %0100°0 %4600°0 (tesse) Anqel|
uoisuad Jau ay} jo uoipodoid s,A1D
102 10z 9102 710z 8107 6102 0202 1207 7207
‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ sunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ sunp ‘0¢ aunp ‘o¢ aunr ‘0¢ aunp ‘0¢ aunp

uejd S¥3dV — AliqerT] uoisuad 3aN ayj jo
aleys ajeuonuodold s,A)19 Jo a|npayoss
SYSNVYMYV ‘WITVS 40 ALID

Certified Public Accountants

Welch, Couch & Company, PA



IO@I
uoday s Joupny 1uspuadapu| 9eg

‘sjqejieAe si JI se pajussald 8q [Im Bjep JO YUoM Sieaf us |

%88'v1 %9. v} %05 ¥} %0G'¥) %Gl %ZE'S1 %ZEGL %ZE Gl %ZE'Gl lloiAed sako|dwa
-palanod jo abejuadlad e se suonnguuoD
g/6'eyl $  8c0'6G1 $  wI8'eol § 00Z'WLL $ 6¥BZTLL S 60491 $  e€8p09L $  Z0PZ0Z §  1€6°20Z $ l|losAed aahoidwae-pasancd s D
N ¢ N $ - $ - $ - 3 - ¢ B $ - ¢ - ¢ (ss99x8) Kouaioyap uolNquIuoD
(vevr'iz) (p1t'€2) (e62'¢2) (652'62) (016'52) (£69'G2) (986'v2) (g00'L€) {680'L€) uoiNqL}U0D palinbal
A)|enyoe.u0d 8y} 0} uope|al u) SUONGLIU0Y
vev'lz $  wiv'ez $ esl'ez $¢ 657G $ 0LG'SZ $ €69'GZ $ 98G'vZ $ 800°le ¢ 680'LE $ suonnguiuoo palinbal Ajienioeiuog
v10Z (X4 910¢ 2102 8102 610¢ 0202 120Z 2e0z
‘0g sunp ‘og sunp ‘0¢ sunr ‘0g aunp ‘0g aunp ‘og aunp ‘og sunp ‘0g aunp ‘o¢ aunp

ue|d SYIJV ~ suonnquIuog s.AJ19 Jo ajnpayss
SYSNYMYY ‘WITVS 40 ALID

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
Certified Public Accountants



%8y LL
%y ece
€86'GZl $
£60'¥62 $
%0100
JANII4

‘1€ JaquieosaQg

%60°99
%85°1.LC
1zeorlL $
818'08¢ $
%c00°0
8102

‘L€ Jaquiaoeq

%lceL
%09°L1¢
ovi'eel $
81.'68¢ $
%1000

6102

‘L€ lsquiaoaq

I—‘Ol
yoday s.Jolipny juspuadspu} 90g

‘8/qejieAe si i se pajussa.ld aq [jim Blep JO YLOM Sieef us)

%6L°LL %SL V8 %0269

%L9¢8| %8¢ 0¢ %EL 85T

/81191 $ 99/'114 $ €26°LL) $

EEV'Y6C $ 08.'iee $ GvE09p $

%E¥00°0 %9¥00°0 %LEY00
0c0Z 1202 c¢coe
‘L€ Jaquiadaqg ‘Le Jaqwaoaq ‘Le Jaquiaoeq

991|0d |4dOT — AMjiqel] uoisuad JaN 3y} jo
aieyg ajeuolodoid s, A9 Jo a|npayoss
SVYSNYMYY ‘WITVS 40 ALID

Aungey uoisuad |ejo}
8y} jo abejuaoiad e se uoiisod Jou Alednply ueld

[lo1Aed aaho|dws-paianod syl
Jo obejusoiad e se (Jasse) Ayjigel) uoisuad
18U 3y} jo aseys ajeuoipodoid s A0

[joiAed aakojdwa-palonos s A0

(1osse) Ayigey uoisuad
18U 8y} Jo a1eys ajeuoipodoid s Aun

(1osse) Ange
uoisuad 1au ay} jo uoipodoid s A0

Certified Public Accountants

Welch, Couch & Company, PA



IN@I

yoday s.Jolpny Juspuadapu] 88

‘ajqejiene si jI se pajussaid aq [jim elep JO YLoM Siesh usj

%0S°€e %08°€¢ %0G°€C %08°€C %0G°€C %06°€C
£86'G¢l $ Lzz'orl $ ovl'eel $ 281191 $ 99221 $ €26'LL1 $
- $ * $ - $ - $ - $ - $
(909'62) (¢s6'2E) (882'1L€) (6.8'L€) (SLL'LY) @18'Ly) $
909'62 $ zs6'ce $ 88C'lE $ 6.8'L¢ $ GLLLY $ ZL8'Ly $
1102 8l0¢c 6102 0z02 X414 44114
‘1¢ Jaquanagg ‘1€ Jaquadaq ‘L€ 1aquiaaeq ‘1€ J8quiadeq ‘L€ Joquiaoaq ‘L€ Jaquiaoaq

921]0d |40 — Suonnqijuo) s,A)D Jo 8|NpayYds
SYSNVMYV ‘WITVS 40 ALID

ljo1Aed askojdwa
-pa1anod jo sbejusalad e se suoinguuon

jjo1hed aako|dwa-paianoo s 1D
(sseoxa) Aousiolep uoynguILoD

uonNgUIUe? painbai
Alrenjorju0d 8y} 0} UOIE|3I Ul SUCIINGLIUOY

suonnquUuod palinbai Ajlenoeluon

Certified Public Accountants

Welch, Couch & Company, PA



%LL P9

VN

VIN

8vi/clL

%0€00°0

1102
‘1€ Jaquiaoaq

%9509

VIN

V/N

66.'951 8

%1€00°0

810¢
‘L¢ Jaquiase(

%1269

VIN

VIN

cLr'gct $

%0€00°0

6102
‘Le Jaquiana

sia)ybyally 19407 — AliqelT uoisuad JaN ay3 jo
aleys ajeuoiuodoud s,A)1D Jo 9)npayos

Imml

uoday s.Jojpny juspuadepu| 88

%0€°GL

VIN

VIN

GGy 901 $

%0€00°0

0coc
‘1€ Jaquiaaaq

%.8°¢8

V/N

VIN

£95'9L $

%6200°0

1202
‘L€ Jequanaqg

%6199

VN

VIN

860'6G1 $

%6200°0

[4AA
‘L€ Jaquvdeq

SYSNVYYV ‘WITVS 40 ALID

‘ajgefieA. SI )i Se pajuasaid eq [im elep JO YUOM Sitesh ua ]
Aunqgelt uoisuad |ejoy
ay} Jo abejuaoiad e se uonisod j8u Aleonpl ue|d
jlolAed aahojdwa-palano2 si
Jo abejuaniad e se (Jasse) Ajjiqel) uoisuad
18U 8y} jo alreys ajeuopodold sAND

llolAed aakoidwa-paianod s AlD

(1osse) Auger) uoisuad
18U 8y} jo areys sjeuouodoud s AN

(1esse) Anjge

uoisuad jau sy} jo uoipodosd s A0

Certified Public Accountants

Welch, Couch & Company, PA



I.V@I
poday s Jojpny juspuadspu) sag

‘ajqejieAe si )1 se pajussaid 8q [IM BJep JO YLOM Sieaf ug]

VIN V/IN V/IN VIN V/N VIN
VIN VY/N VIN V/N VY/IN VIN
= $ - $ & $ » $ = $ - $
(85S'1) (855'1) (¥20'2) (081°¢) (b95's1) (6£6'v1)
866"} 8GG'} $ ¥20'c $ 06l'e $ $95'Gl $ 6E6'YL $
L1102 8102 6102 0202 L2oe ccoe
‘L€ Jaquiaosaq ‘Lg Jaquianag ‘LS Jaquiedaq ‘L€ Jaquaoaq ‘L¢ Jaquiaoag ‘Le Jequiasaq

s19)yByall |4d0O1 — suonnquyuog s, AN Jo 3Npayss
SVYSNVMYV ‘W3TVS 40 ALID

JlolAed aakojdwe
-pa1anod Jo abejuadlad e se suonnguUuo)

[lo1Aed sahoidwa-palanod sAND
(ss82x8) Aouaioyep uoNqIUoD

uoiNQuUIUOD padinbal
Al{en1oenuoD au) 0} UONEIa! Ul SUONINGUIUOD

suolNquuod palinbal Ajenjoeiuo)

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
Certified Public Accountants



Imwl

uoday s Joipny Juspuadapu| 988

VIN V/IN V/IN V/N VIN V/N V/N V/N VIN VIN
V/IN V/N V/N VIN VN V/N VIN V/N V/N V/N
%0889 %¥Z 65 %1909 %25'SS %L0'8Y %2l ey %61 €S %1225 %2S°GS %Ll vy
152°€91 ¢ slLE‘orL $ zo0z'ogl $ 9gLEg‘oLl $ SL8'LoL $ 6628 ¢ 12208 $ 86z‘'LL $ 6108 16909
9o1'6/1 /SZ°€9l 6lLE'9L 20Z°0EL olLeallL G810l - 12z 08 8622/ 6l1'08
(602°'0L) (sc6'9lL) (ZLL'ol) (988'cl) (Los'v1L) ©L¥'vl) 12208 (£26°2) Lzh'e (czi'sl)
- = s # = - 508'G. - = -
(0s) (9i-)] (C22] = (009) (009) (09) ®BLL) (oo1) (P2)
(oos‘gl) (oos'gl) (o2g'91) (ozz'vL) (0zz'vL) (ozz'vL) (ggs'e) (e2¢'91) (9zv'ol) (t8'9l)
1¥9 eV 162 vee 6le vi€ £¥8'9 159'6 050zl (zee'LL)
- - - - - 0e 88lL'l 216'c 16G'2 5508
= $ = $ : 3 - $ . $ - $ - $ - $ - -
a6zL82 $ 666°9vZ $ L£8'v1Z $ 00s‘60Z $ 58021 $ 888'66L $ 8z8'051 $ 688°LL $ ov8vrl LYL'SEL
£0G'€0E 962'/€2 666'012 1£8'%1T 005602 G802LZ 020'9rL 828°0G1 688°/vL ov8'virl
(20Z'99) £0.'6 (zol'zg) (2£€'6) 5852 (u61°21) 808V (6€£6'2) (6t0'c) (£60°'6)
(oog‘9l) (oog‘al) (0zg'91) (ozz'vL) (oze'vlL) (ozz'vl) (ozz'vL) (2¢'91) (9zv'al) (1ev'olL)
(8¥5'65) L0682l 020°0L (sop) 268'0L (929°9) £2.'S = 1) (62t'2)
88Z'L 512 (8z5'9g) $00°L (292'2) ¥05°L 1882 6¥v'e LL9'e G52
€588 Shi'LL oLl'0L vbe's S/L'g S6L°L 8L0l 586'6 111'6 2956
. $ . $ - $ - $ . $ . $ s $ s $ ) -
€102 # vioz 510¢ 9102 2102 810z 6102 . 020¢ « 1202 zzoe

Z2Z0Z ‘1€ Joquiadaq

pung jal|ay pue UoISuad S,uUswWali{ — soljey paje|oy

SYSNVYMYV ‘WITVS 40 ALID

pue Ajjiqelq] uoisuad }aN sahkojdwg ui sabueys jo sjnpayosg

UOIBPIJOSUOD O} 10ld #
6102 ‘I 1990100 DAIOBYS |40 OUl UOHEPI|OSUOD UBld .

lloJAed sakojdwa
palanod jo abejusolad e se Ajjiqel uoisuad 1aN

jl0iked askojdwa pasano)

Aungey uotsuad [e10]
J0 abejusolad e se uonisod Jau Aeionpl ue|d

pua - uonisod jau AuBPNpl ueld
Buiuuibaq - uoiusod Jou Aleronpy ueld

uoiysod 18u ue|d ul abueyd JoN

18B1aw anpensiuiwpe ueid 207

asuadxa aAnesnsiuIwpY

suawied jjousg

aLWIodUl JUBSWISDAUI }ON

Jafoldw3 - suonnquuod

aafojdw3 - suonnguuoDd
uonisod 39N Auelonpiy ueld

Buipua - fy1qe)| uoisuad jejo )
Buiuuibaq - Ayjiqer uoisuad jgjo|

Ajiger uoisuad |ejo} ul abueyd 1oN
sjuawAed yjauag
sabueyo uondwnssy
agusnadxs pajoadxs pue |enoe usamiaq soualayiq
sabueyo yausg
1SaI8)y|
1S02 80IABS
Aypgen uoisuad |ej01

1€ Joquiada( buipus J8aA [eosi]



l@@l
poday sJoypny juapuadapu| 298

LONEPIJOSUOD 0} J0Ld #
6102 ‘| 12Q0J00 dA1308Y8 | 44O Ojul UONEPIjOSUOD Ueld ,

YIN - %Ly 050°S. 16909 Lyl'Gel %SCL « ccoel/lerel
V/IN g = %cG'9S Ler'v9 61¥'08 ov8'vyl %00°L » lcoe/erel
VIN - %LC'CS 16G°0L 86¢C°LL 688'2¥1 %00°L » 0c0e/Lere)
VIN S %B1°€S £09°0L 12’08 828'0S1 %00°L « Bl0c/LErC)
VIN = %cL'ey 68¥'CLL 66€°.8 888'661 %S8'¢ # 8loe/LE/e)
VIN = %10'8% 0L2°0LL Gl8'Lo0lL gg80'cie %1S°€ # Lioc/ierel
VIN = %ZS'GS v81L'c6 glegLlL 005'60¢ %¥0'v # 9l0c/Lerc)
YIN - %19°09 GE9'v8 zoz'oel Le8'vie %20y # glozg/ie/et
VIN = %¥C 65 089'00} 6LE'9YL 666'9¥¢C %6yt # vloc/ierc
V/IN - %0889 60y, LGT'€91 962'LE2 %00°G # ¢loc/ierct
llodhed l1o1hed Idl Aingen uolnisod fmqen ey ‘b€ Jaquiadag
0 paianod jo uolisuad 19N ueld uoisuad junoasiq Buipugz A4
abejuaolad se abejuasiad se 1oN (T1dN) jejol (dl)
1dN uonisod jeN

2202 ‘L€ 4aquadag
pund Joi|@y pue uoisuad s, ustali4
— soney paje|ay yum Buojy Ajiqer] uoisuad 38N sjuauodwo) Jo a|npayss
SVSNVMYV ‘WITVS 40 ALID

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
Certified Public Accountants



CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Schedule of Contributions — Firemen’s Pension and Relief Fund

December 31, 2022

Actuarially Contribution Contribution
FY Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as Percentage
December 31, Contribution  Contribution (Excess) Payroll of Payroll
12/31/2013 # $ 26,690 $ 1,976 $ 24,714 $ - N/A
12/31/2014  # 16,694 - 16,694 - N/A
12/31/20156  # 19,555 - 19,555 - N/A
12/31/2016  # 14,556 - 14,556 - N/A
12/31/2017  # 16,792 - 16,792 - N/A
12/31/2018  # 18,459 30 18,429 - N/A
12/31/2019  * 1,188 1,188 - N/A N/A
12/31/2020 * 4,752 4,752 - N/A N/A
12/31/2021 * 5,304 5,304 - N/A N/A
12/31/2022 * 5,652 5,652 - N/A N/A

* Plan consolidated into LOPFI effective October 1, 2019

# Prior to consolidation

Valuation Date:

Notes

December 31, 2020

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 315t of each year, which is 12 months prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2022:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization
Asset Valuation Method
Price Inflation

Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Notes

Individual Entry-Age Normal

Closed Amortization Period based on projected benefit factors
19 years beginning January 1, 2022

5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor (for funding purposes)
2.50%

N/A

7.50%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2017 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2012-2016.

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant, Disabled Retiree and Employee
mortality tables for males and females. The tables applied
credibility adjustments of 135% for males and 125% for females

and were adjusted for fully generational mortality improvements
using Scale MP-2016.

There were no benefit changes during the year.

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Water and Sewer Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
Operating revenues:
Water sales $ 347,122 $ = $ 347,122
Sewer charges - 195,459 195,459
Sanitation charges 120,837 - 120,837
Connection fees 6,700 50 6,750
Other miscellaneous income 761 - 761
Total operating revenues 475,420 195,509 670,929
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 89,381 89,380 178,761
Employee benefits 23,756 23,755 47,511
Taxes, licenses and fees 39,297 1,695 40,992
Utilities 31,413 19,856 51,269
Sanitation contract 129,531 - 129,531
Supplies and maintenance 35,134 21,526 56,660
Office expense and postage 11,828 11,022 22,850
Insurance and league fees 4,935 7,877 12,812
Depreciation 23,320 23,320 46,640
Miscellaneous (2,873) 6,807 3,934
Total operating expenses 385,722 205,238 590,960
Operating income (loss) 89,698 (9,729) 79,969
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income . ~ 5,815 5,815
Insurance proceeds - 37,154 37,154
Interest expense - (14,272) (14,272)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - 28,697 28,697
Increase in net position $ 89,698 $ 18,968 $ 108,666

See Independent Auditor's Report Welch, Couch & Co y, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Water and Sewer

Schedule of Monthly Water and Sewer Rates
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Residential customers

$17.00 first 1,500 gallons {(minimum)
$3.75 per 1,000 gallons

Commercial and industrial customers

$18.00 first 3,000 gallons (minimum)
$3.75 per 1,000 gallons

Sewer rates (based on water consumption)

Residential
$15.00 first 5,000 gallons (minimum)
$3.75 per 1,000 gallons

Commercial
$17.00 first 3,000 gallons (minimum)
$3.75 per 1,000 gallons

Industrial
50% of the monthly water bill

Water meter deposits

Reconnect fee

See Independent Auditor's Report
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All over 1,500 gallons

All over 3,000 gallons

All over 5,000 gallons

All over 3,000 gallons

$100.00

$50.00

Welch, Couch & Company, PA
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS

Water and Sewer

Supplemental Schedule of Consumption

Month

January
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
October
November
December

Total consumption

Monthly averages

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Total consumption

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Consumption

4,305,900
3,954,100
3,302,700
2,951,900
3,589,400
3,903,000
4,905,900
5,389,800
3,932,000
3,954,500
4,116,100
3,355,000

47,660,300
3,971,692
Average
Number
of Users
596

153

3

See Independent Auditor's Report
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Total
Consumption

31,182,700
15,498,500

979,100

47,660,300
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Budget and Actual -
Proprietary Fund — Water and Sewer
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Water and Sewer

Actual Adjustments Actual Variance
GAAP Budget Budget Favorable
Budget* Basis Basis Basis (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:
Water sales $ 315000 § 347,122 $ (1,930) $ 345192 § 30,192
Sewer charges 195,000 195,459 - 195,459 459
Sanitation charges 110,000 120,837 - 120,837 10,837
Connection fees 8,100 6,750 - 6,750 (1,350)
Other miscellaneous income 5,400 761 - 761 (4,639)
Total operating revenues 633,500 670,929 (1,930) 668,999 35,499
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 188,960 178,761 - 178,761 10,199
Employee benefits 40,844 47,511 (1,701) 45,810 (4,966)
Taxes, licenses and fees 43,500 40,992 - 40,992 2,508
Utilities 41,400 51,268 - 51,269 (9,869)
Sanitation contract 107,000 129,531 - 129,531 (22,531}
Supplies and maintenance 114,500 56,660 (2,011) 54,649 59,851
Office expense and postage 18,900 22,850 - 22,850 (3,950)
Insurance 7,800 12,812 (2,667) 10,145 (2,345)
Depreciation 32,000 46,640 - 46,640 (14,640)
Miscellaneous 2,700 3,934 - 3,934 (1,234)
Total operating expenses 597 604 590,960 (6,379) 584,581 13,023
Operating income (loss) 35,896 79,969 4,449 84,418 48,522
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 500 5,815 - 53815 5315
Insurance proceeds - 37,154 - 37,154 37,154
Interest expense - (14,272) 36 (14,236) (14,236)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 500 28,697 36 28,733 28,233
Other financing sources (uses):
Debt repayment (25,000) - (23,487) (23,487) 1,513
Capital outlay (141,000) . (20,034) (20,034) 120,966
Total other financing sources (uses) (166,000) - (43,521) (43,521) 122,479
Net income (loss) $ (129,604) $ 108,666 § (39,036) §$ 69,630 § 199,234

* Amounts represent the original and final budget of the City’s water and sewer fund. The City did not amend the budget for the year ended
December 31, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Salem, Arkansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Salem, Arkansas, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Salem,
Arkansas’ basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 15, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Salem, Arkansas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and management’s response as item # 2022-01 and 2022-02 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Salem, Arkansas’ financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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City of Salem, Arkansas’ Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of Salem, Arkansas’
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
management’s response. The City of Salem, Arkansas’' response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s interna! control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any

other purpose.
W, lpeh & bomprnny, £
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN STATE STATUTES

To the City Council
City of Salem, Arkansas

We have examined management’s assertions that the City of Salem, Arkansas complied with the requirements of
Arkansas Act 15 of 1985 and the following Arkansas statutes during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Arkansas Municipal Accounting Law of 1973, § 14-59-101 et seq.;

Arkansas District Courts and City Courts Accounting Law, § 16-10-201 et seq.;

Improvement contracts, §§ 22-9-202 — 22-9-204;

Budgets, purchases, and payments of claims, etc., § 14-58-201 et seq. and 14-58-301 et seq_;
Investment of public funds, § 19-1-501 et seq.; and

Deposit of public funds, §§ 19-8-101 — 19-8-107.

oohwn =

Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City’'s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does
not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Salem, Arkansas complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management and the State of Arkansas,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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CITY OF SALEM, ARKANSAS
Schedule of Findings and Management’s Response
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Significant Deficiencies

2022-01 - Lack of Segregation of Duties

Condition: Due to the City’'s small size, only a small number of people are responsible for initiating,
summarizing, recording and processing virtually all transactions of the City’s business on a monthly basis.

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place to eliminate the simultaneous functions of authorization, physical
custody of assets, and recording of transactions.

Effect: Inadequate segregation of duties could allow errors or irregularities in the accounting records to go
undetected for extended periods of time.

Cause: Small number of people responsible for the financial transactions of the City.
Recommendation: We recommend that the City segregate duties to the extent possible.

Management Response: Management will continue to segregate internal control functions to the greatest extent
possible. However, management feels it is not feasible from a cost/benefit standpoint to hire additional
personnel in order to obtain greater segregation of duties

2022-02 — Material Misstatements

Condition: In the process of performing our audit, we encountered account balances that required adjustments
to fairly state the balances.

Criteria: Complete and accurate accounting records and related supporting documentation should be
maintained. In addition, a timely account reconciliation and financial statement close process should be
implemented.

Cause: Itis our belief the problem is due to a lack of timely reconciliations and conversion of accounting system.

Effect: As such, accounting processes were not efficient in reporting account balances which could cause
material misstatements and unreconciled accounts.

Recommendation: Timely and accurate financial statements are critical in aiding management in making
decisions to effectively manage the City. It is our recommendation that management reconciles and adjust
account balances on a monthly basis based on appropriate documentation. In order to provide more accurate
and timely financial reporting, we highly encourage management to implement a more rigorous review
process.

Management Response: City management has hired a third-party accountant to assist in recordkeeping and the
financial statement close process. Auditor adjustments were made in complex areas that require actuary
reports that are only available after year-end from the State. Management will make timely adjustments when
necessary reports are available.
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